[image: image1.bmp]HANDSWORTH

(COPYRIGHT)
A  LOCAL  SOCIETY  MAGAZINE

CIRCULATING IN HANDSWORTH, PERRY BARR AND BIRCHFIELDS.

Vol. IV.


AUGUST, 1897.



No. 38.
Our Picture Gallery.

No.38 – COUNCILLOR T. E. FORSYTH.

Mr T E Forsyth is nothing if not thorough.  The consistency and conscientiousness which have characterised his policy as District Councillor and the courageousness with which he has at all times given expression to his views have won the admiration of his colleagues and the confidence of his constituents in Sandwell Ward.  The qualities which distinguish him as a public man are no less conspicuous in his business life and wherever you come across him, whether declaiming in the council chamber, practising in the law courts, presiding over a debating society or romping with his children at home, he is one of the most lovable of men.
He is a native of the county of Durham and comes of a good old mining family, both his father and grandfather being mining engineers in the service of Sir Joseph Pease and Co., who own extensive coal mines in that part of the country.  An elder brother is following the footsteps of sire and grandsire, but his own aspirations took an entirely different direction.  He is a lawyer.  He was articled at Bishop Auckland and there admitted as a solicitor.  Precluded by the terms of his articles from practising in Bishop Auckland, he cast around for a field which would afford a sufficiently wide scope for his energies and elected to give the Metropolis the benefit of his legal acumen.  He gravitated to Birmingham in 1882 as managing conveyancing clerk to the late Mr M A Fitter, who occupied chambers in Bennet’s Hill for upwards of forty years.  Upon the death of Mr Fitter in 1893, Mr Forsyth launched forth for himself in partnership with Mr G A Bettinson.  The partnership has been a success.  After a tremendous fight of a fortnight’s duration, before a committee of the House of Commons, the partners carried the Birmingham, North Warwickshire and Stratford-on-Avon Railway Bill.  The Great Western and other railway companies offered strenuous but futile opposition and several amending bills have since been passed.  The next step it is anticipated will be the making of the line.  At the present time the railway communication between Birmingham and Stratford is of a round-about character.  The new line will be about twenty miles long and direct and the journey ought to be made in half-an-hour.  A beautiful stretch of country will be opened up to the travelling public.  The route will be through Hall Green, Earlswood and Hockley Heath and embraces scenic beauties which are at present inaccessible to the general public.  This is only one example of the importance of the professional work entrusted to Mr Forsyth and his partner.  We might give more but t’will suffice.  It is rather with Mr Forsyth, the speaker of Handsworth Parliament, member for Sandwell Ward on the Handsworth District Council and champion of conservatism in the district that we are chiefly concerned.
His residence in Handsworth dates from about twelve years ago and for more than a decade he has taken an active interest in the political life of the suburb.  He was a member of the Grove Lane Polling District in perhaps its palmist days when every member was a worker and every worker a fighter.  “The fighting Grove” is to the ardent politician in this fair suburb at least no mere figure of speech.  It conjures back to memory the stormiest of encounters when “With that stern joy which warriors feel, in foemen worthy of their steel” sturdy contingents of the two great political parties struggled stoutly for supremacy.  “With foot to foot and eye opposed, in dubious strife they darkly closed” and who that remembers the conflict of 1892 and witnessed the triumph of Sir Henry Meysey-Thompson, the paladin of the Unionist party, over Sir (then Mr) Hugh Gilzean Reid, champion of Liberalism in the Handsworth Parliamentary Division and no mean antagonist be it understood, but be he partisan of the ‘blues’ or the ‘reds’ will find it in his heart to forgive the victors the elation they feel at the recollection?

Towards the end of 1894 the conservatives met in solemn conclave and discussed the relationship of the party to local affairs.  It was unanimously agreed that larger representation upon the County Council, District Council and what not, was a consummation devoutly to be wished.  Great opportunities were opened up by the new Local Government Act, and as the first election of a District Council was pending, five candidates were chosen.  These were Messrs. E J Abbott, C A Palmer, R Peart, W H Booth and the subject of our sketch.  All were returned, Mr Abbott being at the head of the poll and his colleagues not far down the list.  Twelve months later the district having in the meantime divided into five wards, the Council had to appeal to the constituency.  Mr Forsyth was selected as conservative candidate for Sandwell Ward, in conjunction with Mr C A Palmer.  Three representatives had to be elected.  In addition to the gentlemen named there were three candidates – Messrs. F Lempriere, W H Welshman and G N Milward.  The result was a close fight for first place.  Mr Lempriere however, heading the poll by a few votes over Mr Forsyth.  Mr Palmer occupied the third position.
Mr Forsyth undertook a fair share of committee work and has given ungrudgingly of his time to his duties as District Councillor.  He is at the present moment Chairman of the Finance Committee, Chairman of the Technical School Finance Committee and a member of the Technical Instruction, Free Libraries, Park and Fire Brigade and Highway and Sanitary Committees.  Mr J Wainwright, who acted as Chancellor of the Exchequer in our local Parliament for many years, retired from the Council in 1896 and this important office fell to Mr Forsyth.  The chancellor ship is no sinecure.  Albeit its fiscal concerns are confined within the boundaries of the Urban District of Handsworth, it entails an amount of scheming in order to perpetuate our traditional policy of economy and pre-supposes a capacity for mental arithmetic that, if the burden were laid upon us, we would super-induce troubles hypochondriac.  Many thousands of pounds have been borrowed of late for the carrying out of public works.  To mention a few of the schemes upon which the Council are just now engaged.  There is the magnificent building in Gold’s Hill Road which, from the 29th proximo onwards will do duty as a Technical School.  Upon this some £12,500 are being expended.  Another heavy item is the Refuse Destructor now in course of erection.  Then there are the very considerable expenses connected with the Victoria Park extensions and to drop to a somewhat less significant item, the lighting of the various public buildings in the district by electricity.  Add to all this the peremptory clamouring of a section of the ratepayers just now for the immediate provision of public baths and you will begin to wonder how Mr Forsyth, who holds the strings of the public purse, manages to preserve his youthful looks.
The secret lies we fancy in his perennial exuberance of spirits.  He is always bubbling over with wit and humour and thanks to a good liver and a digestion that vexes him not, he is naturally optimistic.  Mr Forsyth’s first battle upon the District Council was as the spokesman of the Handsworth Parliamentary Debating Society.  The members thereof had grown too ambitious to hold their discursive debates on the momentous problems of the hour in the seclusion of a voluntary school any longer and were turning their aspiring eyes to the Public Buildings as to a land of promise.  With a perspicuity which did them infinite credit the debaters followed up an application to the Council for the use of the Public Hall at a moderate rental by waiting upon Mr Forsyth and confiding their cherished yearnings to his safe keeping.  Impressed with the educational possibilities of the Society under proper management, Mr Forsyth gave his unqualified support to the application and endeavoured to reason over his colleagues to his way of thinking.  This was no easy task.  Prejudices had to be overcome and the matter was shelved so repeatedly that one session was completely lost to the Society.  Mr Forsyth declined to budge however and several of his colleagues backed him up with a warmth that gave promise of an early victory.  The concession desiderated was obtained after a protracted struggle in the Council Chamber and a meeting of the ratepayers at which some forcible remarks were made anent the ownership of public property and the rights of those who paid the piper to call the tune.  Mr Forsyth presided over the first meeting held by the Mock Parliament in the Public Buildings and was unanimously elected Speaker.  From that time – October 1896 – to the present he has retained the Speaker ship.  In March last he had the pleasure of receiving Sir Henry Meysey-Thompson – who gave his presidential address before a well-attended meeting of the Parliament – and Lady Meysey-Thompson.  Early in the year, too, he presided over a public dinner in connection with the society.
Mr Forsyth is a member of the St James’ Lodge of Freemasons and takes a keen interest in Masonic doings.  He is fond of sport as will be understood when we add that he is a non-playing member of the Aston Villa Football Club and the Warwickshire and Handsworth Wood Cricket Clubs and is vice-president of the Heathfield and Selborne Cricket Clubs.  He is a vice-president also of the Handsworth and District Horticultural Society.
His domestic relations are singularly happy.  Eleven years ago he married Margaret Kilburn, daughter of Dr Kilburn, a native of the same county as himself and has found in her an ideal helpmate.  They thoroughly understand each other and have many tastes in common.  They are blessed with two children a boy and a girl.  Mr and Mrs Forsyth are whole-hearted admirers of the Rev. R R Rodgers, whose portrait was hung in our Picture Gallery last month and have sittings at the New Church in Wretham Road.

